
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, July 10, 2012                                                                                City Council Chambers 
6:15 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Economic Development Council applicants beginning at 6:15 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• 2012 Citizen of the Year Proclamation 
• 2012 Honorary Citizen of the Year Proclamation 

 
RECEPTION FOR CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE YEAR 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be notified in advance and background information 
shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the right to deny any request, based on time 
constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a future study session as time allows for up 
to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-2. Approve Bonneville Power Administration Land Use Agreement (Thomas) 
C-3. Amend Ordinance Committing Revenue from Development Services and Parks and 

Recreation Funds (Hendrickson) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Public Testimony and Possible Action on Resolution to Surplus City Property (Lyons/Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider 176th Place SE Right-of-Way Vacation (Lyons/Hart) 
3. Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council (Council) 
4. Adopt Human Services Commission Master Plan (Beaufrere/Throm) 
5. Options for Viewing Meeting Presentations (Scott) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  
 



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 10, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #27879-27939, in the Amount of $1,520,186.81, Dated June 
26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000605561-1000605576 and Paylocity Payrolls 
Checks #1000605579-1000605580 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$147,614.89, Dated July 6, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #27879-27939, in the Amount 
of $1,520,186.81, Dated June 26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000605561-1000605576 and Paylocity Payrolls Checks #1000605579-
1000605580 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$147,614.89, Dated July 6, 2012. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

1 of 171



2 of 171



3 of 171



4 of 171



5 of 171



6 of 171



7 of 171



8 of 171



9 of 171



10 of 171



11 of 171



Consent Agenda Item C-2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 10, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION (BPA) LAND USE AGREEMENT  
  
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Land Use Agreement. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) has an easement for its power lines as they cross 
the Covington Community Park property.  Some of our park development needs to occur in the 
BPA easement.  With this Land Use Agreement BPA provides approval for our activities.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
This agreement is required by BPA.  The alternative would be to not build the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no financial impact. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to ratify the City Manager’s signature on the BPA Land Use 
Agreement. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City 
Manager 
 

12 of 171



ATTACHMENT 1

13 of 171



14 of 171



15 of 171



16 of 171



17 of 171



18 of 171



19 of 171



20 of 171



21 of 171



22 of 171



23 of 171



24 of 171



25 of 171



26 of 171



27 of 171



28 of 171



29 of 171



30 of 171



31 of 171



32 of 171



33 of 171



34 of 171



35 of 171



36 of 171



 

 

Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 10, 2012  
 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1 OF 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-11 RELATING TO COMMITTING REVENUES TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND AND PARKS AND RECREATION FUND. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance  
 

RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In December 2011 the City Council adopted Ordinance No.  
17-11 which formally committed the revenues included in the Development Services Fund and 
the Parks and Recreation Fund to be used solely for the purpose of those funds.  During the 2011 
audit the State Auditor’s office recommended we amend the existing ordinance to specify the 
revenue sources to be committed as well as commit all existing fund balance. 
 
To remain a special revenue fund, the Development Services Fund and the Parks and Recreation 
Fund must have at least 20% of committed revenues.  For the Development Services Fund we 
would commit all residential and commercial building permits fees, and residential and 
commercial building plan review fees.  For the Parks and Recreation Fund we would commit all 
Aquatic Center revenues. 
 
This amendment would also commit all existing fund balances included in each fund. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1) If not adopted the city will report the Development Services Fund and Parks and 
Recreation Fund within the General Fund for CAFR purposes only. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:      X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion _____Other 
 

Councilmember _____________ moves and Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to amend Ordinance No. 17-11 relating to formally committing revenue 
sources within the Development Services Fund and Parks and Recreation Fund. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney.  

37 of 171



 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 10-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NO. 17-11 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the city passed Ordinance No. 17-11 on December 13, 2011, which formally 
committed revenues to the Development Services Fund and Parks and Recreation Fund in order 
for the funds to remain individually reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Covington wishes to specify which revenue sources are 

committed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Covington wishes to specify that all existing fund balance is 

committed within the Development Services Fund and Parks and Recreation Fund;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Section 1 of Ordinance No. 17-11 is amended to read as follows: 
 
The City Council of the City of Covington must now formally commit specific revenue 
sources to the Development Services Fund and Parks and Recreation Fund in order for 
the funds to remain individually reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  
The City Council wishes to commit the following revenue sources to the Development 
Services Fund: 

Residential and commercial building permits fees, and residential and commercial 
building plan review fees. 

 
The City Council wishes to commit the following revenue sources to the Parks and 
Recreation Fund: 

All Aquatic Center revenues 
 
The City Council wishes to specify that all existing fund balance is committed within the 
Development Services Fund and Parks and Recreation Fund. 
 
Section 2.   If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 

to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance, and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it, shall remain in force and effect. 

ATTACHMENT 1

38 of 171



 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 

publication according to law. 
 
ADOPTED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on 

the 10th day of July 2012. 
 
 
   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
Attested: 
       PUBLISHED:  July 13, 2012 
  EFFECTIVE:   July 18, 2012 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

39 of 171



 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 10, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE PUBLIC TESTIMONY AND 

PRESENTATION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY TO BE DECLARED 
SURPLUS; AND,  

 
 PROPOSED RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AS 

SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE BY THE CITY MANAGER. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS(S):  
1. Request for street vacation petition letter dated: November 15, 2011 
2. Map & Aerial of location of subject properties 
3. City’s real estate agent’s appraisal determination dated: March 25, 2012 
4. Letter to petitioner re: appraisal determination dated: April 10, 2012 
5. Mr. Markley’s Letters (4), dated May 14, 2012 
6. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this public hearing is to address the request to declare city owned real property as 
surplus.   
 
On November 15, 2011, Michael Crowson of Covington Investment II, LLC (“petitioner”) 
submitted a petition/memorandum requesting acquisition of three city properties and vacation of 
a portion of 176th Pl SE, adjacent to SE Wax Road.  The petitioner currently owns property at SE 
270th St. and SE Wax Road.  It is the petitioner’s intent to assemble properties for future 
development at this location. To date, no formal development applications have been submitted; 
however, the city held a pre-application conference for this site with Red Canoe Credit Union, 
who is interested in the site if assembled. The request for the portion of the street vacation 
necessary to complete the assemblage of property will be discussed in a separate agenda item.  
 
Two of the three properties requested to be declared surplus (portions of Parcel No.3780400020 
and 3780400030) are located along SE 270th St. and are remnants of property that was acquired 
when SE 270th St. was constructed with the Walmart/Clark Retail development (CD01-
003/1009). The other parcel included in the request is a city stormwater facility tract (Parcel No. 
3780400130) that was platted as part of the June Estate development.  Upon construction of SE 
270th St., the stormwater from the June Estate development was redirected to a newer stormwater 

40 of 171



facility along SE 270th St. The June Estates’ stormwater facility was subsequently abandoned 
and has remained a vacant tract owned by the city.  (See Attachments 1 & 2) 
 
The petitioner submitted an appraisal for Covington ROW SE 270th St and SE Wax Road 
Covington, Washington, dated January 12, 2012, prepared by McKee and Shalka Real Estate 
Appraisal Services and Consultants, Inc.  The appraisal includes market information for the 
street vacation and surplus of the three city properties.  Based on the petitioner’s appraisal, the 
market value for the surplus properties is $21.00/sq. ft.  The city’s real estate consultant reviewed 
the appraisal report and concurred with the appraisal documentation and confirmed the surplus 
value. Based on the aggregated area of the three parcels (10,283 sq. ft.) the value of the surplus 
properties is $215,943. (See Attachments 3 & 4) 
 

Parcel 3780400130 (storm tract) 3,731 sq. ft $78,351.00 
Parcel 3780400020 (Portion) 4,022 sq. ft. $84,462.00 
Parcel 3780400030 (Portion) 2,530 sq. ft.  $53,130.00 
Total  10,283 sq. ft.  $215,943.00 

 
On May 17, 2012, Mr. Ray Markley submitted four letters to the city requesting that the city 
vacate the portion of 176th Pl SE adjacent to his properties located at 27013 176th Pl SE (Parcel 
No. 3780400110) and 27019 176th Pl SE (Parcel No 3780400120) and to surplus the city-owned 
stormwater facility (Parcel No. 3780400130) for his future purchase. Any requests Mr. Markley 
has to vacate a portion of street adjacent to his properties would be reviewed and processed 
according to the street vacation procedures in CMC 12.55.  Although Mr. Markley’s has 
expressed a desire to purchase the stormwater facility parcel if surplused, his request is 
incomplete and unsubstantiated as he has not completed any of the appraisal work that the 
petitioner has already performed. Furthermore, it would be inappropriate for Mr. Markley to 
utilize an appraisal that was paid for by another party.  (See Attachment 5) 
 
It is staff’s recommendation that the council declares the above identified three properties as 
surplus and authorizes the city manager to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the 
petitioner, Covington Investments LLC, for purchase of the three surplus properties.  The 
petitioner has followed the surplus procedure, submitted a formal appraisal to determine fair 
market value, and has shown interest with the development of the properties if assembled.  The 
petitioner also understands that the use of the stormwater tract will be to provide cross access to 
the south (Firestone Site). 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not declare the three parcels as surplus and do not authorize the sale of the properties. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
If the city declares the remainder of the property surplus and authorizes its sale, City Staff 
expects to obtain fair market value for its sale.   
 
 
 
 

41 of 171



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance          X     Resolution_____Motion  _____Other 
 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to pass a Resolution declaring certain real property  known as 
“portions of SE 270th St.” (Parcel No.3780400020 and 3780400030) and the 
“June Estates stormwater tract” (Parcel 3780400130) as surplus and 
authorizing the city manager to negotiate and enter into an agreement with 
Covington Investments LLC for purchase of the surplused properties. 

  
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 
 Finance Director  
         City Attorney 

42 of 171



ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 171



44 of 171



ATTACHMENT 2

45 of 171



46 of 171



47 of 171



48 of 171



49 of 171



ATTACHMENT 3

50 of 171



51 of 171



52 of 171



53 of 171



54 of 171



55 of 171



56 of 171



57 of 171



58 of 171



59 of 171



60 of 171



61 of 171



62 of 171



63 of 171



64 of 171



ATTACHMENT 4

65 of 171



66 of 171



ATTACHMENT 5

67 of 171



68 of 171



69 of 171



70 of 171



71 of 171



RESOLUTION NO. 12-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DECLARING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS “PORTIONS OF SE 270TH ST.” 
(PARCEL NOS.3780400020 AND 3780400030) AND THE 
“JUNE ESTATES STORMWATER TRACT” (PARCEL 
3780400130) AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THEIR 
SALE BY THE CITY MANAGER. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Covington owns portions of real property (Parcel 
Nos.3780400020 and 3780400030) that are remnants of property acquisitions from the 
construction of SE 270th St. for the development of the Walmart/Clark Retail development 
(CD01-003/1009); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Covington owns real property located within the June Estates, 
shown as a stormwater facility (Parcel No. 3780400130), that was decommissioned at the time of 
the Walmart/Clark Retail development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Covington Investments II LLC submitted a letter to the city requesting the 
surplus and subsequent purchase of the above three parcels (“Surplus Parcels”) for future 
development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Covington Investments II LLC submitted an appraisal to determine the fair 
market value for the Surplus Parcels; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city’s real estate consultant concurred with the appraisal finding and 
fair market value of $21.00 per sq. ft. for the Surplus Parcels; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city must surplus real property in conformance with Chapter 39.33 of 
the Revised Code of Washington (RCW); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the city council has determined that retaining the Surplus Parcels is not 
necessary for future street or stormwater improvements and should be declared surplus; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, 
Washington as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Surplus Parcels described in the attached Exhibit “A”, 
incorporated herein by this reference, are hereby declared as surplus.  
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 6

72 of 171



 Section 2. The city manager may negotiate and enter into an agreement with 
Covington Investments II LLC for purchase of the Surplus Parcels for an amount equal 
to, or greater than, their appraised value.  Should the city decide to not sell the Surplus 
Parcels to Covington Investments II LLC, the city manager is authorized to use any 
commercially reasonable means to sell the Surplus Parcels. 
  
 Passed by the City Council on the 10th day of July, 2012. 
 
 
 
             

Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
        
 
Attested: 
 
 
       
Sharron Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Sara Springer, City Attorney  
 
 

73 of 171



EXHIBIT A

74 of 171



 Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 10, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   PROPOSED ORDINANCE APPROVING A PETITION TO VACATE 

APPROXIMATELY 80 FEET OF THE SOUTHEASTERNLY PORTION OF 
176TH PLACE SE ADJACENT TO SE WAX ROAD 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS(S):   

1. Petition for street vacation and request for surplus of city owned property letter, dated 
November 15, 2011 

2. Map of street vacation area 
3. City’s real estate agent’s appraisal determination, dated March 25, 2012 
4. Hearing Examiner Recommendation, dated May 23, 2012 
5. Letter from Markley, dated June 4, 2012 
6. Hearing Examiner Reconsideration, dated June 13, 2012 
7. Ordinance 

 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda item is for the city council to consider the hearing examiner’s 
recommendation to approve a petition to vacate the southeasterly 80 ft of 176th Pl. SE, adjacent 
to SE Wax Road, for the purpose of assembling properties for future commercial development. 
Although the applicant provided one petition for both the surplus of city property and a street 
vacation, this agenda item only relates to the petition for a street vacation.  The request for 
surplus of city owned property is addressed in a separate agenda item. 
 

A. Street Vacation Petition 
On November 15, 2011, Michael Crowson of Covington Investment II, LLC (“petitioner”) 
submitted a letter to the city requesting a street vacation and paid the associated $920.00 
application fee.  The requested street vacation, as described above, includes the southeasterly 
portion of SE 176th Pl. SE southeast of SE 270th Street and adjacent to SE Wax Road. The 
portion of street to be vacated is approximately 4,058 sq. ft. and the properties adjacent to the 
street vacation areas are owned by the petitioner and the city.  The remaining portion of 176th Pl. 
SE, adjacent to Parcel Nos. 3780400110, 3780400110 and 3780400020, is not proposed to be 
vacated at this time and will remain to provide access to those properties.  (See Attachments 1 
and 2) 
 
When right-of-way is vacated, each half reverts back to the abutting property owner. In this 
instance, the southwest portion of the proposed street vacation abuts the city’s stormwater 
property recommended for surplus and potential sale to the petitioner in a separate agenda item.  

75 of 171



It is staff’s recommendation that if the council declares the stormwater facility as surplus and 
directs the city manager to negotiate with the petitioner for the purchase of the surplus property, 
that the council also directs the city manager to negotiate with the petitioner for the sale of the 
vacated right-of-way adjacent to the surplus property.  
 
 

B. Appraisal 
The petitioner submitted an appraisal providing market information for the portion of street to be 
vacated.  The city’s real estate consultant reviewed the appraisal report and concurred with the 
appraisal documentation that set the value of the portion of street to be vacated as $21.00 per sq. 
ft. 
  
Pursuant to CMC 12.55.110, because no public funds have been expended in the acquisition, 
improvements, and maintenance of the right-of-way in question, the petitioner will be required to 
pay fifty percent (50%) of the appraised value of the street to be vacated.  Accordingly, the street 
vacation costs are based on the vacation of 4,058 sq. ft of ROW at a rate of $10.50 per sq. ft. 
(50% of the appraised $21.00/sq. ft.), equaling $42,609.00 owed to the city by the petitioner 
within ninety (90)  days of vacation of the right-of-way.  (See Attachment 3)  
 
 

C. Criteria for Granting Street Vacation   
CMC 12.55.090 outlines the criteria to be considered by the hearing examiner and the city 
council for the approval of a request for street vacation.   Each criteria is addressed in turn as 
follows:  
 

(1) Granting the vacation will not conflict with the general purposes and objectives 
of the city’s comprehensive plan regarding land use, streets, utilities, drainage, parks, 
trails, and open space. 
 
Granting this street vacation will not conflict with the city’s comprehensive plan. The city’s 
comprehensive plan land use map identifies the properties adjacent to 176th Pl. SE, south of SE 
270th St. as downtown commercial—the petitioner is proposing to develop the properties for 
commercial development, as intended by the current land use.    
 
Additionally, there are no parks or trails designated within the city’s comprehensive plan that 
will be accessed from this section of 176th Pl. SE.   
 
Finally, when SE 270th St. was constructed, new water and sewer mains were installed to service 
the area.  Other utilities, such as power, cable, etc., are also located within SE 270th St.  Any 
additional utility easements required would be associated with the redevelopment of the adjacent 
properties, and any necessary utility easements would be established through the engineering 
review process for that redevelopment.   
 
 (2) The street, or portion thereof, is not likely to serve a useful public purpose both 
now and in the future, which cannot be met through use of easements for a specific 
purpose, or the vacation will best serve the public interest. 

76 of 171



 
This portion of street does not serve a useful public purpose. The section of SE 176th Pl. SE 
proposed to be vacated only provides access to three single-family residents and is no longer 
needed to provide a connection to SE Wax Road. Additionally, alternative access to the three 
single-family residents is provided from SE 270th St.  The southern portion of 176th Ave SE 
proposed to be vacated will not limit access to these properties, nor is this segment of right-of-
way necessary for providing connectivity.   
 
 (3) The vacated area will not increase the number of single-family building sites or 
multifamily density. This may be mitigated by appropriate conditions on the vacated area. 
 
The proposed portion of street to be vacated will not increase the number of single-family 
building sites or multifamily density. The properties adjacent to 176th Pl. SE are zoned Mixed 
Commercial (MC) and are intended to be redeveloped for commercial development and higher 
multifamily density. Pursuant to CMC 18.31.090, residential density in the MC zone is 24 units 
per acre; with ground floor commercial there is no limit on the residential density.  
 
 (4) The request for vacation was not initiated to correct a condition created by an 
applicant in violation of city ordinance. 
 
The proposed vacation will not correct any violation of city ordinances. 
 

D. Hearing Examiner Recommendation 
An open record hearing by the hearing examiner was held on May 17, 2012. The hearing 
examiner issued a recommendation to approve the street vacation with six conditions. Notice of 
the hearing examiner’s recommendation was sent to all parties of record for the petition.  Mr. 
Markley requested a reconsideration of the recommendation.  The hearing examiner evaluated 
recorded testimony and issued an order to address the request.  The order did not change the 
hearing examiner’s original recommendation to the city council to approve the street vacation 
with the six conditions. (See Attachments 4, 5 and 6) 
    
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the petition to vacate the southeasterly 80 ft of 176th Pl. SE, adjacent to SE Wax 
Road with the conditions recommended by the hearing examiner plus additional condition(s) set 
by the city council.  Additional conditions may require additional council findings in support of 
the additional conditions. 
2. Do not approve the petition to vacate the southeasterly 80 ft of 176th Pl. SE adjacent to 
SE Wax Road. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
As noted in Section B above, if the council approves the petition to vacate a portion of 176th Pl. 
SE, the petitioner must remit payment to the city totaling 50% of the fair market value of the 
vacated street within ninety (90) days of the adopting ordinance.  Pursuant to the Revised Code 
of Washington and the CMC, one-half of the revenue for the area to be vacated must be 
dedicated to the acquisition, improvement, development, and related maintenance of public open 
space or transportation capital projects within the city.   

77 of 171



  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:      X     Ordinance            Resolution   _____Motion   _____Other 
 
 Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 

seconds, to pass an ordinance approving the petition to vacate approximately 
80 ft of the southeastern portion of 176th Pl SE, adjacent to SE Wax Road 
with the conditions in the hearing examiner’s recommendation to the city 
council dated May 23, 2012, and directing the city manager to enter into an 
agreement with Covington Investments LLC for purchase of the vacated 
right-of-way adjacent to the city’s surplused stormwater facility.  

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager,  

 Finance Director 
 City Attorney 

78 of 171



ATTACHMENT 1

79 of 171



80 of 171



ATTACHMENT 2

81 of 171



82 of 171



ATTACHMENT 3

83 of 171



84 of 171



85 of 171



86 of 171



87 of 171



88 of 171



89 of 171



90 of 171



91 of 171



92 of 171



93 of 171



94 of 171



95 of 171



96 of 171



97 of 171



ATTACHMENT 4

98 of 171



99 of 171



100 of 171



101 of 171



102 of 171



103 of 171



104 of 171



105 of 171



106 of 171



ATTACHMENT 5

107 of 171



108 of 171



ATTACHMENT 6

109 of 171



110 of 171



111 of 171



112 of 171



113 of 171



114 of 171



115 of 171



116 of 171



 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 11-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
APPROVING A PETITION TO VACATE APPROXIMATELY 
80 FEET OF THE SOUTHEASTERNLY PORTION OF 176TH 
PLACE SE, ADJACENT TO SE WAX ROAD.   
 
 

 
WHEREAS, on November 15, 2011, Covington Investment II, LLC (“petitioner”) 

submitted a letter requesting the vacation of  approximately 80 feet of the southeasterly portion 
of 176th Pl. SE adjacent to SE Wax Road and paid the associated $920.00 street vacation 
application fee; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 17, 2012, the hearing examiner held an open record public hearing 

to hear the petition and recommended  that the city council GRANT approval of the street 
vacation pursuant to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as attached as Exhibit B, dated 
May 23, 2012; and   

 
WHEREAS, the hearing examiner and city council find that the street vacation meets the 

criteria for granting a street vacation as provided in CMC 12.55.090 and outlined in Exhibit B; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the city has complied with and completed the street vacation procedures 

pursuant to RCW 35.79.040 and CMC 12.55.  
. 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.

 

  That portion of 176th Pl. SE, maintained as right-of-way by the City of 
Covington and shown on Exhibit A, incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby vacated, 
subject to the hearing examiner’s recommendation in Exhibit B, incorporated herein by this 
reference.   

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after proper posting 
and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 7

117 of 171



 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Passed by the City Council in an open public meeting on the 10th day of July, 2012. 

 
 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  July 13, 2012 

 
EFFECTIVE:   July 18, 2012 

 
                            
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

118 of 171



EXHIBIT A

119 of 171



EXHIBIT B

120 of 171



121 of 171



122 of 171



123 of 171



124 of 171



125 of 171



126 of 171



127 of 171



128 of 171



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 10, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENTS TO OPENINGS ON THE COVINGTON 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (CEDC).  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 

Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
         
ATTACHMENT(S):  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:     
Five CEDC terms will expire on July 31, 2012.  Three of these terms are to be appointed by the 
City of Covington.  Each term is for a period of two years.  The city received three applications 
for appointment to CEDC as follows: 
 
Name of Applicant          
Laura Roth 
Jim Hutchinson (currently serving in Position No. 6) 
Jeff Wagner (currently serving in Position No. 7) 
   
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____ Ordinance            Resolution      X     Motions              Other  

 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill Position No. 4 on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  
 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill Position No. 6 on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  
 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill Position No. 7 on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2014.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Community Development Director. 
 

129 of 171



Agenda Item 4   
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: July 10, 2012 
  
SUBJECT:     CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON’S HUMAN 

SERVICES MASTER PLAN  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:   Human Services Commission 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1.  City of Covington Human Services Master Plan 
  
PREPARED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
 
EXPLANATION:  
A draft Human Services Master Plan was presented to the City Council in October 2011 when it 
was nearing completion.  Following the Council’s review, minor changes were made based on 
their recommendations.  The final plan being presented on this date also includes current data 
from the 2010 census incorporated into demographic tables and charts.   A summary of 
significant changes and additions made since the earlier draft was presented is as follows: 
 

• Executive Summary (page 3) 
• Assessment 6 - Services for Veterans (page 11) by Council recommendation 
• Conclusions and Recommendations added for each Community Profile Report 
• Table 5 - Free and Reduced Lunch Program for Kent School District (page 17) 
• Homelessness (pages 18-19) 
• Expanded Report III – Safety (page 19) 
• FDCARES program, Report VI - Services for Adults (pages 27-28) by Council 

recommendation 
• Human Services Delivery System (pages 30-34) 
• Conclusion (page 35) 

 
This completes the goal of the Human Services Commission to create a Human Services Master 
Plan whose policies and priorities will serve the Commission as decision-making guidelines for 
the next six (6) years during the bi-annual funding cycles.  The plan’s carefully formulated 
assessments, goals, and outcomes will aid in promoting and ensuring a healthy community for 
our citizens.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not to adopt the Human Services Master Plan. 
2. Propose changes to the Human Services Master Plan prior to adoption. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.  The Human Services Master Plan serves as a guideline for selecting agencies that will be 
funded to serve the Covington Community and/or dispersing funds already allocated in during 
the annual budget process. 

130 of 171



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance   _____Resolutions       X    Motion     _____Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves and Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to adopt the Human Services Master Plan. 

 
REVIEWED BY:   Personnel Manager; City Manager.  

131 of 171



ATTACHMENT 1

132 of 171



133 of 171



134 of 171



135 of 171



136 of 171



137 of 171



138 of 171



139 of 171



140 of 171



141 of 171



142 of 171



143 of 171



144 of 171



145 of 171



146 of 171



147 of 171



148 of 171



149 of 171



150 of 171



151 of 171



152 of 171



153 of 171



154 of 171



155 of 171



156 of 171



157 of 171



158 of 171



159 of 171



160 of 171



161 of 171



162 of 171



163 of 171



164 of 171



165 of 171



166 of 171



167 of 171



Agenda Item 5  
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: July 10, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: PROVIDE DIRECTION ON OPTIONS FOR VIEWING COUNCIL MEETING 

PRESENTATIONS AND VIDEOS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The laptops that council uses to view meeting presentations and videos are almost 7 years old.  
This is well beyond the normal life expectancy of a laptop of this grade and the machines are 
beginning to show signs of failure.  Councilmembers are reporting instances of delayed and/or 
choppy video streaming as well as presentations freezing mid-stream.  As an alternative to 
laptops, meeting presentations can be viewed by placing individual monitors at each council seat 
on the dais or by hanging 2 television screens from the ceiling in front of the dais that would be 
easily viewed from each seat.  Both options will provide reliable presentation viewing and could 
be implemented now due to the relatively low budget impact; each option would be under 
$2,000.  Alternatives could be considered as part of the 2013 budget cycle. 
 
Staff is requesting direction from council. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Consider an alternative option during the 2013 budget cycle. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Up to $2,000. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance             Resolution          Motion               Other  
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 
REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager 
   Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

168 of 171



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: July 10, 2012  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

July 24, 2012 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

169 of 171



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, July 24, 2012                                                                              City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Presentation on SR516 Corridor Study – Tom Washington, State Department of 
Transportation 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  June 26, 2012 Regular Meeting & July 10, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Contract Amendment #1 with Best Parking Lot Cleaning Inc. for Street Sweeping 

(Akramoff) 
 

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  July 12 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  July 12 Meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  July 19 Meeting; July 4 Meeting Canceled. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  July 18 Meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison Darren Dofelmier: July 18 Meeting; July 5 

Meeting Canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  June 28 Meeting. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Public Testimony and Possible Action on Medical Marijuana Moratorium Extension (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Amend Multifamily Tax Exemption Ordinance to Ad Condominiums (Hart/Mueller) 
3. Adopt Revised Employee Handbook (Beaufrere) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 Future Agenda Topics  

Draft 
as of 07/05/12 

 

170 of 171

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

171 of 171


	07-10-12 Special for Interviews and Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, July 10, 2012                                                                                City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 07-10-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet BPA Blue Sheet ss edits 7-2-12
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet Blue Sheet to Amend Ordinance 17-11
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 7-12 Amendment of Ordinance Number 17-11
	Item 1 Blue Sheet Storm Facility Surplus BLUE SHEET
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 Surplus_Attachment 1_App
	Item 1 Attachment 2 Surplus_Attachment 2_Maps
	Item 1 Attachment 3 Surplus_Attachment 3_RE Apprasial Determ
	Item 1 Attachment 4 Surplus_Attachment 4_Appraisal Determ
	Item 1 Attachment 5 Surplus_Attachment 5_Markley Letters
	Item 1 Attachment 6 Surplus_Attachment 6_Resolution
	Item 1 Attachment 6 Exhibit A Surplus_Attachment 6_Exhibit A
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 176th Place Street Vacation BLUE SHEET
	Item 2 Attachment 1 Street Vacation_Attachment 1_App
	Item 2 Attachment 2 Street Vacation_Attachment 2_Maps
	Item 2 Attachment 3 Street Vacation_Attachment 3_RE Apprasial Determ
	Item 2 Attachment 4 Street Vacation_Attachment 4_HE Rec
	Item 2 Attachment 5 Street Vacation_Attachment 5_Recon Req
	Item 2 Attachment 6 Street Vacation_Attachment 6_HE Reconsideration
	Item 2 Attachment 7_ Ordinance for 179th Street Vacation
	Item 2 Attachment 7 Exhibit A Street Vacation_Attachment 7_Exhibit A
	Item 2 Attachment 7 Exhibit B Street Vacation_Attachment 7_Exhibit B
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 07-10-12  Blue Sheet CEDC Appointments
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 4 Blue Sheet 07.10.12  Blue Sheet to Consider adoption of HS Master Plan
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1
	Item 5 Blue Sheet council laptops
	Agenda Item 5

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	07-24-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, July 24, 2012                                                                              City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




